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January 5, 2024 

 
 
By Email and Inter-Office Mail 
Hon. Michael Soboleski 
2 State House Station 
Augusta, Maine 04333 
 
Dear Representative Soboleski: 
 

Thank you for your January 1, 2024 letter concerning the ruling by Secretary of State 
Shenna Bellows that the nomination petition of Donald J. Trump was invalid.  In the letter, you 
ask the Ethics Commission to review whether Secretary Bellows acted impartially when 
presiding over the hearing that led to the ruling.  You also asked the Commission to investigate 
whether Secretary Bellows collaborated with Attorney General Aaron Frey to deny Mr. Trump 
ballot access. 

 
The staff of the Ethics Commission reviews each complaint filed with our office to 

determine whether the complaint raises issues within our department’s jurisdiction.  After 
considering your complaint and conferring with counsel, the staff is returning the complaint to 
you because we believe it is outside the jurisdiction of the Commission. 

 
Mr. Trump has appealed the Secretary’s ruling to the Superior Court of Maine.  Trump v. 

Bellows, AP-24-01 (Me. Super. Ct. Ken. Cnty. Jan. 2, 2024).  Among other things, Mr. Trump 
argues that the Secretary’s ruling was defective because she was biased.  The issue of bias may 
be considered as part of that appeal. 
 
Commission’s Jurisdiction 
 

The Commission’s primary responsibility is serving as the campaign finance agency for 
the State of Maine.  We regulate financial activity to influence state elections.  21-A M.R.S. §§ 
1001-1128.  We have no authority over any aspect of federal candidate elections.  Id. § 1011.  In 
addition, the Commission administers lobbyist disclosure requirements.  3 M.R.S. §§ 311-327.  
We also receive personal income statements from various state officials.  1 M.R.S. § 1016-G. 

 
The Commission’s only ethics jurisdiction (e.g., misconduct or bias by officials) relates 

to legislators.  1 M.R.S. §§ 1013-1014.  For example, we are authorized to investigate whether a 
legislator has acted in a conflict of interest or has abused their office to benefit themselves or 
another person.  Id. § 1014(1) & (3).  The Commission is not authorized by law to consider 
ethics complaints about other officials, such as the governor, constitutional officers, or county or 
municipal officials. 
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Staff Determination on Your Complaint 

 
In the opinion of the Commission staff, the complaint is outside our department’s 

jurisdiction.  The allegations that Secretary Bellows was biased and colluded with another 
official to deny Mr. Trump ballot access do not relate to the subject matter over which the 
Commission may initiate proceedings, such as legislative ethics, campaign finance reporting, or 
lobbyist disclosures.  94-270 Code of Maine Rules ch. 1, §§ 4(1), 4(2), & 4(3).  The 
Commission’s counsel agrees with this assessment. 

 
Accordingly, pursuant to the Commission’s rules, the staff is returning the complaint to 

you.1  We will not be scheduling the complaint to be heard by the members of the Commission, 
but we will notify the Commission at its January 31, 2024 meeting that the staff returned the 
complaint to you. 

 
By returning the complaint to you, the Commission staff is not dismissing your concerns 

about the Secretary’s bias.  The issue is simply not one that our department is authorized by law 
to consider. 
 

If you have any questions about this response, please email me at 
Jonathan.Wayne@maine.gov.  Thank you. 
 

Sincerely, 

 
Jonathan Wayne 
Executive Director 

 
cc: By Email  
 Hon. Shenna Bellows, Secretary of State 
 Hon. William J. Schneider, Commission Chair 

 
1 Chapter 1, § 4(4) of the Commission’s rules provides: “If the Director and Counsel are in agreement that the 
subject matter of a request for an investigation is clearly outside the jurisdiction of the Commission, the staff may 
forward the request to the appropriate authority or return it to the person who made the request, provided that the 
staff notifies the Commission members of the action at the next Commission meeting.”  94-270 C.M.R. ch. 1, § 4(4). 






